# HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SLIDELL

Basic Financial Statements and Supplementary Information

March 31, 2024



# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	4
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Statement of Net Position	8
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position	9
Statement of Cash Flows	10
Notes to Basic Financial Statements	12
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Financial Data Schedule	24
Schedule of Capital Fund Program Costs and Advances	26
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer	27
SINGLE AUDIT INFORMATION	
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards	29
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with <i>Government Auditing Standards</i>	30
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance For Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance	32
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs	35



# **INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT**

Board of Commissioners Housing Authority of the City of Slidell Slidell, Louisiana

#### **Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements**

#### Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities the Housing Authority of the City of Slidell (the "Authority"), as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Authority, as of March 31, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Basis for Opinion**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

## **Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements**

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

## bermanhopkins.com

MELBOURNE 8035 Spyglass Hill Road Melbourne, FL 32940 321-757-2020 ORLANDO 255 South Orange Avenue, #1000 Orlando, FL 32801 407-841-8841 **WINTER PARK** 1415 Gene Street Winter Park, FL 32789 407-412-9299

1

### Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and *Government Auditing Standards*, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

#### Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

### Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The accompanying financial data schedule and schedule of capital fund program costs and advances are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Authority. The schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to agency head of chief executive officer are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the State of Louisiana, and are not a required part of the financial statements of the Authority. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

## Other Reporting Required by *Government Auditing Standards*

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated September 27, 2024, on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over financial report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

September 27, 2024 Melbourne, Florida

Berman Hopkins Wright & LaHam CPAs and Associates. LLP

# MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

# For the year ended March 31, 2024

As management of the Housing Authority of the City of Slidell (the "Authority"), we offer the readers of the Authority's basic financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the year ended March 31, 2024. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Authority's basic financial statements.

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Interim Executive Director, Ron Frazier, Housing Authority of the City of Slidell, 1250 Martin Luther King Drive, Slidell, LA 70458.

## Financial Points

- The assets of the Authority exceeded the liabilities as of March 31, 2024 by \$5,687,157 (net position), a decrease of \$89,304.
- The Authority's cash balances as of March 31, 2024 were \$3,274,938 representing an increase of \$484,832.
- The Authority earned revenue, including funding for capital activities, from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") of \$4,950,904.
- Public Housing had an occupancy rate of 88.8%.

#### **Overview of Financial Statements**

The financial statements included in this annual report are those of a special-purpose government engaged in a single business-type activity prepared on an accrual basis. Over time, significant changes in the Authority's net position serve as a useful indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. To fully assess the financial health of any authority, the reader must also consider other non-financial factors such as changes in client household composition, fluctuations in the local economy, HUD mandated program administrative changes and the physical condition of capital assets. The following statements are included:

- Statement of Net Position this statement reports the Authority's assets less its liabilities at the end of the fiscal year. You can think of the Authority's net position as the difference between the Authority's rights (assets) and the Authority's obligations (liabilities).
- Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position this statement presents information showing how the Authority's net position increased or decreased during the current fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of when cash is received or paid. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash inflows and cash outflows in the future periods.
- Statement of Cash Flows this statement presents information showing the total cash receipts and cash disbursements of the Authority during the current fiscal year. The statement reflects the net changes in cash resulting from operations plus any other cash requirements during the current year (i.e. capital additions, debt service, prior period obligations, etc.). The statement reflects the receipt or disbursement of cash that was obligated to or paid by the Authority in prior periods and subsequently received or paid during the current fiscal year (i.e. receivables and payables).

#### **Overview of Financial Statements (continued)**

• Notes to the Basic Financial Statements - the notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided. These notes give greater understanding on the overall activity of the Authority and how values are assigned to certain assets and liabilities and the longevity of these values. In addition, notes reflect the impact (if any) of any uncertainties the Authority may face.

In addition to the basic financial statements listed above, our report includes supplementary information. This information is to provide more detail on the Authority's various programs and the required information mandated by regulatory bodies that fund the Authority's various programs.

## Financial Analysis

Statement of Net Position									
						Net			
		2024		2023		change			
Current assets, net	\$	3,584,429	\$	3,157,580	\$	426,849			
Capital assets, net		2,741,789		2,765,413		(23,624)			
Total assets		6,326,218		5,922,993		403,225			
Current liabilities		628,706		139,443		489,263			
Other noncurrent liabilities		10,355		7,089		3,266			
Total liabilities		639,061		146,532		492,529			
Net investment in capital assets		2,741,789		2,765,411		(23,622)			
Restricted net position		892,110		1,123,424		(231,314)			
Unrestricted net position		2,053,258		1,887,626		165,632			
Total net position	\$	5,687,157	\$	5,776,461	\$	(89,304)			

**Net Current Assets** increased by \$426,849 primarily due to April 2024 Housing Choice Voucher program subsidy being received in March.

**Net Capital Assets** decreased by \$23,624 due to current year depreciation expense offset by \$458,308 of capital additions.

**Current Liabilities** increased by \$489,263 primarily due to an increase in unearned revenue. The unearned revenue mainly relates the April 2024 HCV subsidy being received in March.

**Net Position** - The difference between an organization's assets and its liabilities is its net position. Net position is categorized into three components.

- 1. <u>Net investment in capital assets</u> the Authority's capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and related debt.
- 2. <u>Restricted</u> the component of the Authority's net position which is subject to constraints imposed by law or agreement.

### Financial Analysis (continued)

#### Net Position (continued)

3. <u>Unrestricted</u> - the component of the Authority's net position that is neither invested in capital assets nor restricted which increase principally due to operations. These resources are available to meet the Authority's ongoing obligations to its residents and creditors.

<u>Cha</u>	inges	s in Net Positio	n				
	2024			2023	Net change		
Operating revenue:							
HUD revenue	\$	4,535,374	\$	3,546,115	\$	989,259	
Other revenue, net		632,500		818,632		(186,132)	
Total operating revenue		5,167,874		4,364,747		803,127	
Operating expenses:							
Administrative		596,790		549,132		47,658	
Tenant services		189		3,368		(3,179)	
Utilities		99,355		98,730		625	
Maintenance		537,153		370,993		166,160	
Protective services		55,953		53,104		2,849	
General		332,182		222,808		109,374	
Depreciation		481,932		351,193		130,739	
Housing assistance payments		3,590,554		3,375,623		214,931	
Total operating expenses		5,694,108		5,024,951		669,157	
Operating income (loss)		(526,234)		(660,204)		133,970	
Nonoperating revenues:							
Interest income - unrestricted		21,400		6,141		15,259	
Change in net position before capital							
contributions		(504,834)		(654,063)		149,229	
HUD capital grants		415,530		-		415,530	
Change in net position		(89,304)		(654,063)		149,229	
Total net position - beginning		5,776,461		6,430,524		(654,063)	
Total net position - ending	\$	5,687,157	\$	5,776,461	\$	(89,304)	

**HUD Revenue** increased by \$989,259 mainly due to the Authority utilizing its 2017 and 2018 Capital Fund grants into operations in FYE 2024.

**Total Operating Expenses** increased by \$669,157. Maintenance expense increased by \$166,160 due to the Authority's increased efforts in making repairs and improvements. Housing assistance payments increased by \$214,931 due to increases in rental rates and unit months leased. Depreciation expense increased \$130,739 due to depreciation from capital asset additions. General expense increased \$109,374 due to a write off of HCV portability receivable from the Housing Authority of New Orleans of approximately \$80,000 as well as legal fees relating to the debarment of the former Executive Director of approximately \$20,000.

# Capital Asset and Debt Activity

Net Capital Assets decreased by \$23,624 due to current year depreciation expense offset by \$458,308 of capital additions for roof repairs at Washington Heights and flooring, door replacements, and security cameras for Washington Heights and Country Gardens.

At the end of the fiscal year 2024, the Authority had no long-term debt.

#### Factors Affecting Next Year's Budget

The Authority is dependent upon HUD for the funding of its Low Rent Public Housing, Housing Choice Voucher and Capital Fund programs; therefore, the Authority is affected by the federal budget. Other portions of the Authority's portfolio, for instance, affordable housing sites and/or third party contract work, are affected more by national and local economic conditions.

Under the terms of its Annual Contributions Contract, the Authority receives operating and capital fund subsidies from HUD. As of Fiscal Year end, the Housing Authority has gained access to its prior year Capital Fund and has obligated and expensed over 90% of all available prior year grants.

#### **Economic Factors**

Significant economic factors affecting the Authority are as follows:

- Federal funding provided by Congress to the Department of Housing and Urban Development and new rules and regulations, which could be unfunded;
- Local labor supply and demand, which can affect salary and wage rates;
- Local inflationary, recessionary and employment trends, which can affect resident incomes and therefore the amount of rental income;
- Inflationary pressure on utility rates, housing costs, supplies and other costs;
- Trends in the current housing market; and
- Natural disasters which can have a devasting impact on the local economy.

# STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

# March 31, 2024

# ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS	<i>•</i>	
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted	\$	1,839,228
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted		1,435,710
Receivables, net		59,958
Due from HUD Bransid expanses		153,133
Prepaid expenses		96,400
Total current assets		3,584,429
NONCURRENT ASSETS		
Capital assets, net		2,741,789
Total assets		6,326,218
LIABILITIES		
CURRENT LIABILITIES		
Accounts payable		36,098
Accrued salaries and benefits		4,447
Accrued compensated absences		11,472
Tenant security deposits		43,241
Unearned revenue		533,448
Total current liabilities		628,706
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES		
Accrued compensated absences		10,355
Total liabilities		639,061
NET POSITION		
Net investment in capital assets		2,741,789
Restricted		892,110
Unrestricted		2,053,258
Total net position	\$	5,687,157

# STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

# For the year ended March 31, 2024

OPERATING REVENUES	
HUD operating revenues	\$ 4,535,374
Tenant revenue, net	425,032
Portability revenue	137,249
Other operating revenue	 70,219
Total operating revenues	 5,167,874
OPERATING EXPENSES	
Administrative	596,790
Tenant services	189
Utilities	99,355
Maintenance	537,153
Protective services	55,953
General	332,182
Depreciation	481,932
Housing assistance payments	 3,590,554
Total operating expenses	 5,694,108
OPERATING LOSS	(526,234)
NONOPERATING REVENUES	
Interest income - unrestricted	 21,400
Change in net position before capital contributions	(504,834)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS	
HUD capital grants	 415,530
Change in net position	(89,304)
Total net assets - beginning	 5,776,461
Total net position - ending	\$ 5,687,157

# STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

# For the year ended March 31, 2024

## CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Collections from HUD operating grants	\$ 4,969,908
Collections from tenants	425,207
Collections from other sources	308,770
Payments to employees	(438,428)
Payments to suppliers	(1,168,693)
Housing assistance payments	 (3,590,554)
Net cash provided by operating activities	506,210
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES	
Interest received	 21,400
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING	
ACTIVITIES	
Purchase of property and equipment	(458,308)
Capital grant revenue	 415,530
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities	 (42,778)
NET INCREASE IN CASH	484,832
Cash at beginning of the year	 2,790,106
CASH AT END OF THE YEAR	\$ 3,274,938
AS PRESENTED ON THE ACCOMPANYING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION	
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted	\$ 1,839,228
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted	 1,435,710
	\$ 3,274,938

Housing Authority of the City of Slidell						
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)						
For the year ended March 31, 2024						
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES						
Operating loss	\$	(526,234)				
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash						
provided by operating activities:		191 022				
Depreciation Change in provision for allowance of doubtful accounts		481,932 9,229				
Change in provision for allowance of doubtful accounts (Increase) decrease in assets:		9,229				
Receivables, net		93,423				
Due from HUD		(49,981)				
Prepaid expenses		5,314				
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:		0,011				
Accounts payable		2,722				
Accrued salaries and benefits		(1,494)				
Accrued compensated absences		7,959				
Tenant security deposits		(1,175)				
Unearned revenue		484,515				
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$	506,210				

### NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## For the year ended March 31, 2024

## **NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES**

1. <u>Reporting entity</u>

The Housing Authority of the City of Slidell (the "Authority") is a political subdivision of the State of Louisiana established on March 11, 1967, pursuant to the laws of the State of Louisiana, to provide low-rent housing for qualified individuals in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") and other Federal Agencies. The primary purpose of the Authority is to provide safe, decent, sanitary, and affordable housing to low-income, elderly, and disabled families in Slidell, Louisiana.

The Authority is not a component unit of the City, as defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board's ("GASB") *Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards*, Section 2100, *Defining the Financial Reporting Entity*, as the Board independently oversees the Authority's operations.

The definition of the reporting entity as described by GASB Codification Section 2100 is based primarily on the notion of financial accountability. A primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that make up its legal entity. It is also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint a voting majority of an organization's governing body and either it is able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. The Authority's reporting entity is comprised of an enterprise fund which includes the activities of several housing programs.

The authority is related to the City of Slidell only to the extent that Commissioners are appointed by the Mayor of the City of Slidell. The City of Slidell is not financially accountable for the Authority as it cannot impose its will on the Authority and there is no potential for the Authority to provide financial benefit to, or impose financial burdens on, the City of Slidell. Accordingly, the Authority is not a component unit of the City of Slidell.

#### 2. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements report information about the reporting government as a whole excluding fiduciary activities. The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities rely, to a significant extent, on fees and charges for support.

Governments use fund accounting, whereby funds are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflow of resources, fund net position, revenues and expenditures/expenses.

# NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# For the year ended March 31, 2024

# NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 2. <u>Government-wide and fund financial statements (continued)</u>

For financial reporting purposes, the Authority reports all of its operations as a single business activity in a single enterprise fund. Therefore, the government-wide and the fund financial statements are the same.

Enterprise funds are proprietary funds. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating activities generally arise from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund's principal activity. The operating revenues of the Authority consist primarily of rental charges to tenants and operating grants from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD"), and include, to a lesser extent, certain operating amounts of capital grants that offset operating expenses. Operating expenses for the Authority include the cost of administrative, tenant services, general, maintenance, utilities, protective services, depreciation and housing assistance payments. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses, except for capital contributions, which are presented separately.

When restricted resources meet the criteria to be available for use and unrestricted resources are also available for use, it is the Authority's policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources, as needed.

#### 3. <u>Measurement focus and basis of accounting</u>

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various financial statements. The proprietary fund utilizes an economic resources measurement focus. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position and cash flows. All assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position.

Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus applied. The basis of accounting used is similar to businesses in the private sector, thus, these funds are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.

For financial reporting purposes, the Authority considers its grants associated with operations as operating revenue because these funds more closely represent revenues generated from operating activities rather than non-operating activities. Grants associated with capital acquisition and improvements are considered capital contributions and are presented after non-operating activity on the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. The Authority maintains its accounts in accordance with the chart of accounts prescribed by HUD.

# NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# For the year ended March 31, 2024

# NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 3. Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued)

As provided by GASB Codification Section P80.115, *Proprietary Fund Accounting and Financial Reporting: Defining Operating Expenses,* and related guidance, tenant revenue is reported net of accounts written off in the amount of \$9,229.

#### 4. Summary of HUD programs

The accompanying basic financial statements include the activities of several housing programs subsidized by HUD at the Authority. A summary of each significant program is provided below.

## Low Rent Public Housing Programs

The Authority provides housing to eligible families under leasing arrangements. The Authority manages two sites, Washington Heights and Country Gardens Estates. Washington Heights encompasses 75 one, two and three-bedroom units. Country Gardens Estates is for elderly families and consists of 50 one-bedroom units.

The purpose of the public housing program is to provide decent and affordable housing to low-income families at reduced rents. The developments/units are acquired, developed and modernized under HUD's Development and Capital Fund programs. Funding of the program operations and development is provided by federal annual contributions, operating subsidies and tenant rentals (determined as a percentage of family income, adjusted for family composition and other allowances).

## Housing Assistance Payments ("HAP") Programs

HAP Programs utilize existing privately owned family rental housing units to provide decent and affordable housing to low-income families. The Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program ("HCV") is funded through federal housing assistance contributions from HUD for the difference between the approved landlord contract rent and the rent paid by the tenants.

#### 5. Budgets

Budgets are prepared on an annual basis for each program and are used as a management tool throughout the accounting cycle. Budgets are not, however, legally adopted nor required in the basic financial statement presentation.

#### NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### For the year ended March 31, 2024

#### NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

- 6. Assets, liabilities and net position
  - a. Cash and cash equivalents

For financial statement purposes cash and cash equivalents are considered to be amounts in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, and time deposits and other investments with original maturities of three months or less. Under state law, the Authority may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, or time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law or any other state of the United States, or under the laws of the United States.

#### b. Receivables and amounts due from HUD

Receivables, net consist of revenues earned at year-end and not yet collected. Amounts presented as due from HUD principally result from grant revenue being accrued for allowable program expenses not yet funded. Other receivables consist of tenant receivables, portability receivables for the housing assistance payments programs and receivables from various parties in the normal course of business. An allowance for uncollectible amounts is estimated by management based on historical collection experience and a review of the current status of accounts receivable (see Note B-2).

c. Prepaid items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the fiscal year end are recorded as prepaid items on the Authority's statement of net position.

d. Capital assets

The Authority's policy is to capitalize assets with a value in excess of \$5,000 and a useful life in excess of two years. The Authority capitalizes the costs of site acquisition and improvement, structures, infrastructure, equipment and direct development costs meeting the capitalization policy. Assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available, and contributed assets are valued at fair value on the date contributed. When land, buildings and equipment are sold or otherwise disposed of, the asset account and related accumulated depreciation account are relieved, and any gain or loss is included in operations.

Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, which range as follows:

Buildings and improvements	15 - 40 years
Equipment - dwelling and administration	3 - 7 years

#### NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## For the year ended March 31, 2024

#### NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 6. Assets, liabilities and net position (continued)

e. Tenant security deposits

Tenant security deposits are deposits held by the Authority that are required of tenants before they are allowed to move into an Authority owned site. The Authority records this cash as restricted, with an offsetting liability, as these funds may be reimbursable to the tenant when they move out.

#### *f.* Accrued compensated absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as annual vacation and sick leave. A liability for compensated absences for annual/vacation leave that is attributable to services already rendered and that is not contingent on a specific event, outside the control of the Authority and its employees, is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Authority and its employees are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place. In accordance with the provisions of GASB Codification Section C60, *Compensated Absences*, the estimated liability for vested leave benefits is recorded when it is earned as an expense and the cumulative unpaid amount is reported as a liability.

#### g. Unearned revenues

Unearned revenues include amounts collected before revenue recognition criteria are met and generally consist of prepaid tenant rents and subsidy received before the amounts are earned. As of March 31, 2024, unearned revenue consists of prepaid rents of \$2,516, unearned HCV funding of \$331,394, and unspent Presidentially Declared Disaster Grant funds of \$199,538.

h. Net position

In accordance with GASB Codification Section 1800.155, *Reporting Net Position in Government-Wide Financial Statements*, total equity as of March 31, 2024, is classified into three components of net position:

*i.)* Net investment in capital assets

This category consists of capital assets (including restricted capital assets), net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, and improvements of those assets.

# NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# For the year ended March 31, 2024

# NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 6. Assets, liabilities and net position (continued)

- h. Net position (continued)
  - *ii.)* Restricted component of net position

This category consists of components of net position restricted in their use by (1) external groups such as grantors, creditors or laws and regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The statement of net position of the Authority reports \$892,110 of restricted net position which consists of cash restricted for modernization and development of \$714,390 and HCV HAP reserves of \$177,720 (see Note B-1).

## iii.) Unrestricted component of net position

This category includes all of the remaining net position that does not meet the definition of the other two components. Certain amounts of unrestricted net position, even though categorized as unrestricted in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards, are still programmatically restricted based on the funding streams provided by HUD.

## 7. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

#### 8. Income taxes

The Authority is a governmental entity and is exempt from federal and state income taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in the financial statements.

#### 9. Impairment of long-lived assets

The Authority evaluates events or changes in circumstances affecting long-lived assets to determine whether an impairment of its assets has occurred. If the Authority determines that a capital asset is impaired, and that impairment is other-than-temporary, then an impairment loss will be recorded in the Authority's financial statements. Impaired capital assets that will no longer be used are reported at the lower of carrying value or fair value. Impairment of capital assets with physical damage generally are measured using the restoration cost approach, which uses the estimated cost to restore the capital asset to identify the portion of the historical cost of the capital asset that should be written-off. Management has determined that long-lived assets were not impaired at March 31, 2024.

# NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# For the year ended March 31, 2024

# NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 10. Financial data schedule

As required by HUD, the Authority prepares its financial data schedule in accordance with HUD requirements in a prescribed format which differs from the presentation of the basic financial statements. The schedule's format presents certain operating items as non-operating such as depreciation expense, housing assistance payments and extraordinary maintenance expense. In addition, the schedule's format includes non-operating items as operating such as investment revenue, HUD capital grants revenue, gains and losses on the disposal of fixed assets and interest expense. Furthermore, the schedule reflects tenant revenue and bad debt expense separately.

#### 11. Leasing activities

The Authority is the lessor of dwelling units to low-income residents. The rents under the leases are determined generally by the resident's income as adjusted for eligible deductions regulated by HUD, although the resident may opt for a flat rent. Leases may be cancelled by the lessee at any time or renewed every year. The Authority may cancel the leases only for cause. Revenues associated with these leases are recorded in the accompanying financial statements and related schedules within tenant revenue. Primarily all of the capital assets of the Authority are for these leasing activities except for administrative offices and equipment.

#### 12. <u>Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements</u>

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, *Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements*, which establishes that a government should recognize a subscription liability at the commencement of the subscription term, which is when the subscription is placed into service. The subscription liability should be initially measured at the present value of the subscription payments expected to be made during the subscription term. This statement is effective for the Authority's March 31, 2024 fiscal year. There was no impact on the Authority's financial statements as of March 31, 2024.

## 13. Impact of recently issued accounting policies

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, *Compensated Absences*. This statement is effective for the Authority's March 31, 2025 fiscal year end.

In December 2023, the GASB issued Statement No. 102, *Certain Risk Disclosures*. This statement is effective for the Authority's March 31, 2026 fiscal year end.

In April 2024, the GASB issued Statement No. 103, *Financial Reporting Model Improvements*. This statement is effective for the Authority's March 31, 2027 fiscal year end.

Management is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of these statements on the Authority's financial statements.

#### NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### For the year ended March 31, 2024

#### NOTE B - DETAILED NOTES

#### 1. Deposits and investments

As of March 31, 2024, the Authority's cash consist of cash accounts with carrying amounts of \$3,274,938.

In accordance with GASB Codification Section C20, *Cash Deposits with Financial Institutions*, the Authority's exposure to deposit and investments risk is disclosed as follows:

*Custodial credit risk.* Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority's deposits may not be returned. The Authority does have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk, which requires collateral to be held in the Authority's name by its agent or by the bank's trust department. As of March 31, 2024, none of the Authority's bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk.

#### Restricted deposits

As of March 31, 2024 restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

Current:	
HCV HAP reserves	\$ 177,720
Modernization and development	714,390
FEMA grant advances	199,538
Tenant security deposits	43,241
Unearned HAP	 300,821
Total restricted cash	\$ 1,435,710

#### 2. <u>Receivables, net</u>

As of March 31, 2024, receivables, net consist of:

Portability receivables	\$ 57,311
Due from other governments	1,852
Tenant receivables	573
Miscellaneous	 321
Total receivables	60,057
Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants	 (99)
	\$ 59,958

# NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### For the year ended March 31, 2024

#### NOTE B - DETAILED NOTES (continued)

#### 3. Due from HUD

As of March 31, 2024, due from HUD consists of \$153,133 of operating subsidy which was earned by the Authority through its Annual Contributions Contract ("ACC") with HUD that have been earned but not yet received.

# 4. Capital assets, net

A summary of changes in capital assets, net is as follows:

	Balance at April 1, 2023			ansfers in/ additions	nsfers out/ leletions	Balance at March 31, 2024		
Non-depreciable:								
Land	\$	779,855	\$	-	\$ -	\$	779,855	
Depreciated:								
Buildings and improvements		8,981,517		441,179	-		9,422,696	
Equipment - dwelling		513,230		-	(386,998)		126,232	
Equipment - administration		226,103		17,129	 (172,600)		70,632	
Total depreciated		9,720,850		458,308	 (559,598)		9,619,560	
Total capital assets		10,500,705		458,308	 (559,598)		10,399,415	
Less accumulated depreciation:								
Buildings and improvements		(7,108,747)		(456,606)	-		(7,565,353)	
Equipment - dwelling		(431,868)		(20,882)	386,998		(65,752)	
Equipment - administration		(194,677)		(4,444)	 172,600		(26,521)	
Total accumulated depreciation		(7,735,292)	ī	(481,932)	 559,598		(7,657,626)	
Capital assets, net	\$	2,765,413	\$	(23,624)	\$ 	\$	2,741,789	

During the year the Authority's additions, totaling \$458,308, consist of roof repairs, flooring, and security cameras for their public housing sites. The reductions of capital assets and accumulated depreciation reflect the removal of fully depreciated assets that are no longer in use.

5. Noncurrent liabilities

A summary of changes in noncurrent liabilities is as follows:

Pa	yable at					Pa	ayable at		
/	April 1,					Μ	arch 31,	(	Current
	2023	Additions Redu		ductions	2024		portion		
\$	13,868	\$	20,860	\$	(12,901)	\$	21,827	\$	11,472
			Ápril 1, 2023 Ad	April 1, 2023 Additions	April 1, 2023 Additions Re	April 1, 2023 Additions Reductions	April 1, M 2023 Additions Reductions	April 1,March 31,2023AdditionsReductions2024	April 1,March 31,02023AdditionsReductions2024

### NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### For the year ended March 31, 2024

#### NOTE B - DETAILED NOTES (continued)

#### 6. <u>Risk management</u>

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damages to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. As part of the Authority's risk management program, The Authority carries commercial insurance, for risks of loss regarding workers' compensation, employee health and general liability. There were no significant reductions of insurance coverage from prior years and settlements did not exceed insurance coverage for each of the past three years.

#### 7. <u>Commitments and contingencies</u>

#### a. Legal

Generally, the Authority is party to various pending or threatened legal actions arising from the normal course of operations. As of the date of this report, management is not aware of any such instances.

#### b. Grants and contracts

The Authority participates in various federally-assisted grant programs that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Entitlements to these resources are generally conditional upon compliance with the terms and conditions of grant agreements and applicable federal regulations, including the expenditure of resources for allowable purposes. Any disallowance resulting from a federal audit may become a liability of the Authority. As of the date of this report, management is not aware of any such examinations.

#### c. Funds awarded

The Authority received funding from HUD through the Capital Fund program to help subsidize the cost of project repairs, improvements and certain operating costs. As of March 31, 2024, the Authority had unspent awards of \$893,099 for the Capital Fund program.

#### 8. Concentrations

As of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, 88% of revenues and 72% of the receivables reflected in the basic financial statements are from HUD.

The Authority operates in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the Authority are subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to HUD. Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related costs and the additional administrative burden to comply with the changes. In addition, any excess reserves may reduce future funding levels and possibly be subject to recapture.

# NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### For the year ended March 31, 2024

# NOTE B - DETAILED NOTES (continued)

9. <u>Subsequent events</u>

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date noted on the Independent Auditor's Report, the date the financial statements were available to be issued and has determined that no material transactions have occurred that would warrant additional adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

# SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

#### FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE

#### For the year ended March 31, 2024

Line Isem         Paids and Is		
No.         Account Description         14.800         14.872         14.877         Deasters 70.08         Elimit           111         Carb. Unrearited         1.80.540         1.80.70         1.80.70         1.80.70           112         Carb. Tream Security Depotis         1.80.40         1.77.70         1.77.70         1.77.70         1.77.70           114         Carb. Tream Security Depotis         4.32.41         1.77.70         1.89.58         3.77.70         1.89.58         3.77.70         1.89.58         3.77.70         1.89.58         3.77.70         1.89.58         3.77.70         1.89.58         3.77.70         1.89.58         3.77.70         1.89.58         3.77.70         1.89.58         3.77.70         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.58         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.72         1.89.58         3.77.71         1.89.72         1.89.59         3.77.71		
1112       cash - Restricted Modernization and Development       714,300       . <th>s Tof</th> <th>Total</th>	s Tof	Total
111       Cash - Tennat Security Deposits       43,241       1         112       Cash - Testriced for poyment of current liability       -       300,621       199,538         113       Cash - Testriced for poyment of current liability       -       500,621       199,538         121       Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects       -       57,311       -         122       Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects       -       -       -         124       Accounts Receivable - Tennats Dwelling Rents       573       -       -       -         124       Accounts Receivable - Tennats Dwelling Rents       577       -       -       -         128       Allowane for Output/I accounts - Dwelling Rents       577       -       -       -         128       Allowane for Output/I accounts - Dwelling Rents       577,311       -       -       -         129       Investments - setticted       -       -       -       -       -       -         131       Investments - setticted       -	- 1	1,839
111         Cash - Ternant Security Deposits         43,241	-	714
1115       Cash - Restricted for payment of current liability       .       .	-	177
100         Total Cash         2,444,171         631,223         199,538           121         Accounts Receivable - HUD         153,133         -         -           122         Accounts Receivable - IMscellaneous         321         -         -           124         Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous         321         -         -           126         Accounts Receivable - Tomato Dvelling Rents         573         -         -           128         Accounts Receivable - Tomato Dvelling Rents         090         -         -           128         Accounts - Dvelling Rents         090         -         -         -           129         allowances for doubtful Accounts         155,780         -         7,311         -           130         Investments - restricted or payment of current liability         -         -         -         -           131         Investments - restricted for payment of current liability         -         -         -         -           142         Propati Expressa of Other Masets         200,117         694,774         199,538           1431         Investments - restricted for payment of current liability         -         -         -           1441         Atomatos         2,20	-	43
121         Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects         -         57,311         -           122         Accounts Receivable - HDE Government         1,852         -         -           128         Accounts Receivable - Tenants Dwelling Rents         573         -         -           128         Accounts Receivable - Tenants Dwelling Rents         573         -         -         -           121         Allowance for Outbirld Accounts - Dwelling Rents         699         -         -         -           121         Allowance for Outbirld Accounts - Dwelling Rents         199, -         -         -         -           123         Investments - restricted         -         -         -         -         -           121         Investments - restricted for payment of current liability         -	-	500
121         Accounts Receivable - HUD         153,133         -         -         -           124         Accounts Receivable - Other Government         1,82         -         -         -           128         Accounts Receivable - Tenants Dvelling Rents         573         -         -         -           128.1         Accounts Receivable - Tenants Dvelling Rents         573         -         -         -           129.1         Adverse for Dveltuh Accounts - Dvelling Rents         593         -         -         -           120.1         Adverse for Dveltuh Accounts - Dvelling Rents         593         -         -         -           121.1         Investments - restricted         -         -         -         -         -           131         Investments - restricted for payment of current liability         -	- 3	3,274
1124         Accounts Receivable - Micellaneous         321         .         .         .           128         Accounts Receivable - Micellaneous         321         .         .         .           128.         Accounts Receivable - Micellaneous         573         .         .         .           128.         Allowances for Doubful Accounts - Doubling Rents         (99)         .         .         .           129.         allowances for doubful accounts         155.760         57.311         .         .           130.         Investments - restricted         .         .         .         .         .           131.         Investments - restricted         .         .         .         .         .         .         .           142.         Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets         90.166         .	-	57
1128       Accounts Receivable - Transts Dwelling Rents       673       .       .         128       Accounts Receivable - Transts Dwelling Rents       673       .       .         128       Alexands of Podbild Accounts - Owelling Rents       (99)       .       .         128       Alexands of Podbild Accounts - Owelling Rents       (99)       .       .         129       alexands accounts - Owelling Rents       (99)       .       .         131       Investments - estricted       .       .       .         132       Investments - restricted       .       .       .         133       Investments - restricted       .       .       .       .         143       Alexands of Obsolite Inventories       .       .       .       .       .         143       Alexands of Obsolite Inventories       .	-	153
128         Accounts Receivable - Tenants Dwelling Rents         (99)         .         .         .           128.         Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Owelling Rents         (99)         .         .         .           120         allowances for doubtful Accounts         155,780         .         .         .           131         Investments - restricted         .         .         .         .         .           132         Investments - restricted         .         .         .         .         .           132         Investments - restricted         .         .         .         .         .           133         Investments - restricted         .         .         .         .         .           143         Investments - restricted         .         .         .         .         .           144         Interrotines         .         .         .         .         .         .           150         Total Control Assets         2.000.117         .         .         .         .         .           161         Land         .         .         .         .         .         .         .         .         .         .	-	
1126.1       Allowance for Dubtful Accounts - Dwelling Rents       (93)       .       .       .         120       allowances for dubtful Accounts       1155,780       .       .       .         131       Investments - unrestricted       .       .       .       .         132       Investments - restricted       .       .       .       .       .         132       Investments - restricted for payment of current liability       .       .       .       .       .         143       Investments - restricted for payment of current liability       .	-	
Total Receivables, net of         155,700         57,311           120         allowances for doubtill accounts         1155,700         57,311           131         Investments - restricted accounts         1155,700         57,311           132         Investments - restricted for payment of current liability         -         -         -           133         Investments - restricted for payment of current liability         -         -         -           143         Newtories         0.166         -         6,234         -           143         Investments - restricted for payment of current liability         -         -         -           143         Investories         -         -         -         -           144         Iterprogram due from         -         -         -         -           150         Ctall Current Assets         2,690,117         E04,774         199,538         -           161         Land         779,855         -         -         -         -           162         Buildings         9,422,686         -         -         -         -           163         Furniture, Equipment & Machiney - Dwellings         162,228         -         18,364         -	-	
120       allowances for doubtrul accounts       155,780       57,311       -         131       Investments - unrestricted       -       -       -       -         132       Investments - restricted or payment of current liability       -       -       -       -         142       Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets       90,166       -       6.234       -         143       Inventories       -       -       -       -       -         143       Inventories       -       -       -       -       -       -         144       Interporgram due from       -	-	
132       Investments - restricted for payment of current liability       -       -       -       -         142       Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets       90,166       -       6.234       -         143       Inventories       -       -       -       -       -         144       Interprogram due from       -       -       -       -       -         150       Total Obsolete Inventories       2.690,117       694,774       199,538       -       -       -       -         161       Land       779,855       -	-	213
135       Investments - restricted for payment of current liability       -       -       -       -         142       Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets       90,166       -       6.234       -         143       Inventories       -       -       -       -       -         143       Influences of Obsolete Inventories       -       -       -       -       -         144       Interprogram due from       -       -       -       -       -       -         161       Land       779,855       - <td>-</td> <td></td>	-	
142       Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets       90,166       6,234       .         143.1       Inventories       .       .       .       .         143.1       Allowance for Obsolete Inventories       .       .       .       .         144       Interprogram due from       .       .       .       .       .         150       Total Current Assets       2,690,117       .       .       .       .         161       Land       779,855       .       .       .       .       .       .         162       Buildings       136,22,288       .	-	
143       Inventories       .       .       .       .         143       Allowance for Obsolete Inventories       .       .       .       .         144       Interprogram due from       .       .       .       .       .         157       Total Current Assets       2.690,117       .       .       .       .         161       Land       .       .       .       .       .       .       .         162       Buildings       . <td>-</td> <td></td>	-	
143.1       Allowance for Obsolete Inventories	-	96
144       Interprogram due from       -       -       -       -         150       Total Current Assets       2,690,117       694,774       199,538         161       Land       779,855       -       -       -         162       Buldings       9,422,696       -       -       -         163       Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings       126,232       -       -       -         164       Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration       52,268       -       18,364       -         165       Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration       52,268       -       12,118       -         166       Accurrulated Depreciation       (7,651,380)       -       (6,246)       -       -         160       Total Non-Current Assets       2,729,671       -       12,118       -       -         190       Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources       5,419,788       706,892       199,538         290       Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources       5,419,788       -       0,437       -         212       Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable       3,030       -       1,417       -         221       Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Paya	-	
150       Total Current Assets       2,690,117       -       694,774       199,538         161       Land       779,855       -       -       -         162       Buildings       9,422,686       -       -       -         163       Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings       126,232       -       -       -         164       Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration       52,288       -       18,364       -         166       Accumulated Depreciation       (7,651,380)       -       (6,246)       -         160       Total Pixed Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         180       Total Assets       2,729,671       -       12,118       -       -         180       Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources       5,419,788       -       706,892       199,538         209       Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources       5,419,788       -       -       -       -         312       Accounts Payable <= 90 Days	-	
161       Land       779,855       .       .         162       Buildings       9,422,696       .       .         163       Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings       126,232       .       .         164       Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration       52,268       .       18,364       .         166       Forcumulated Depreciation       (7,651,380)       .       .       .       .         160       Total Fixed Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation       2,729,671       .       12,118       .         180       Total Assets       2,729,671       .       12,118       .       .         190       Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources       5,419,788       .       .       .       .         191       Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources       5,419,788       .       .       .       .         192       Accured Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable       3.030       .       1,417       .	-	
162       Buildings       9,422,696       -       -         163       Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings       126,232       -       -         164       Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration       52,268       -       18,364       -         166       Accumulated Depreciation       (7,651,380)       -       (6,246)       -         160       Total Non-Current Assets       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         180       Total Non-Current Assets       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         190       Total Assets       0,719,788       706,892       199,538         290       Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources       5,419,788       706,892       199,538         312       Accrued Compensated Absences       4,725       -       6,737       -         214       Cor	- 3	3,584
163       Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings       126,232       -       -         164       Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration       52,268       18,364       -         166       Accumulated Depreciation       (7,651,380)       -       (6,246)       -         160       Total Fixed Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         180       Total Assets       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         190       Total Assets       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         190       Total Assets       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         190       Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources       5,419,788       -       706,892       199,538         200       Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources       5,419,788       -       10,437       -         312       Accounts Payable <= 90 Days	-	779
164       Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration       52,268       -       18,364       -         166       Accumulated Depreciation       (7,651,380)       (6,246)       -         160       Total Fixed Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         180       Total Non-Current Assets       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         190       Total Assets       5,419,788       -       706,892       199,538         290       Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources       5,419,788       -       10,437       -         312       Accounts Payable <= 90 Days	- 9	9,422
166       Accumulated Depreciation       (7,651,380)       -       (6,246)       -         160       Total Fixed Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation       2,729,671       12,118       -         180       Total Non-Current Assets       2,729,671       12,118       -         190       Total Assets       5,419,788       706,892       199,538         290       Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources       5,419,788       706,892       199,538         312       Accounts Payable <= 90 Days	-	126
160         Total Fixed Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation         2,729,671         12,118         .           180         Total Non-Current Assets         2,729,671         12,118         .           190         Total Assets         5,419,788         706,892         199,538           290         Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources         5,419,788         706,892         199,538           312         Accounts Payable <= 90 Days	-	70
180         Total Non-Current Assets         2,729,671         12,118         190           190         Total Assets         5,419,788         706,892         199,538           290         Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources         5,419,788         706,892         199,538           312         Accounts Payable <= 90 Days	- (7	(7,657
190         Total Assets         5,419,788         706,892         199,538           290         Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources         5,419,788         706,892         199,538           312         Accounts Payable <= 90 Days         25,661         10,437            321         Accounts Payable <= 90 Days         25,661         10,437            321         Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable         3,030         1,417            322         Accrued Compensated Absences         4,735         6,737            341         Tenant Security Deposits         43,241         -            342         Unearned Revenues         2,516         331,394         199,538           343         Interprogram Due To         -         -         -         -           343         Interprogram Due To         -         -         -         -           344         Interprogram Due To         -         -         -         -           354         Accrued compensated Absences - Non Current         4,947         -         5,408         -           350         Total Liabilities         84,130         -         355,393         199,538      <	- 2	2,74
290         Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources         5,419,788         706,892         199,538           312         Accounts Payable <= 90 Days	- 2	2,74
312         Accounts Payable <= 90 Days         25,661         10,437         -           321         Accounts Payable <= 90 Days	- 6	6,326
321       Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable       3,030       -       1,417       -         322       Accrued Compensated Absences       4,735       -       6,737       -         341       Tenant Security Deposits       43,241       -       -       -         342       Unearned Revenues       2,516       -       331,394       199,538         347       Interprogram Due To       -       -       -       -         310       Total Current Liabilities       79,183       -       349,985       199,538         354       Accrued compensated Absences - Non Current       4,947       -       5,408       -         355       Total Noncurrent Liabilities       4,947       -       5,408       -         300       Total Liabilities       84,130       -       355,393       199,538         300       Total Liabilities       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         511.4       Restricted net position       714,390       -       177,720       -         512.4       Unrestricted net position       1,891,597       -       161,661       -         513       Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity       5,335,658       - </td <td>- 6</td> <td>6,320</td>	- 6	6,320
321       Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable       3,030       1,417       1         322       Accrued Compensated Absences       4,735       6,737       1         341       Tenant Security Deposits       43,241       -       -       1         342       Unearned Revenues       2,516       -       331,394       199,538         347       Interprogram Due To       -       -       -       -         310       Total Current Liabilities       79,183       -       349,985       199,538         354       Accrued compensated Absences - Non Current       4,947       -       5,408       -         350       Total Noncurrent Liabilities       84,130       -       5,408       -         300       Total Liabilities       84,130       -       355,393       199,538         508.4       Net investment in capital assets       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         511.4       Restricted net position       714,390       -       177,720       -         512.4       Unrestricted net position       1,891,597       -       161,661       -         513       Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity       5,335,658       -       35	-	36
322       Accrued Compensated Absences       4,735       -       6,737       -         341       Tenant Security Deposits       43,241       -       -       -         342       Unearned Revenues       2,516       -       331,394       199,538         347       Interprogram Due To       -       -       -       -       -         310       Total Current Liabilities       79,183       -       349,985       199,538         354       Accrued compensated Absences - Non Current       4,947       -       5,408       -         350       Total Noncurrent Liabilities       4,947       -       5,408       -         300       Total Liabilities       84,130       -       355,393       199,538         508.4       Net investment in capital assets       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         511.4       Restricted net position       714,390       -       177,720       -         512.4       Unrestricted net position       1,891,597       161,661       -         513       Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity       5,419,788       -       706,892       199,538         70300       Net Tenant Rental Revenue       429,60	-	4
341       Tenant Security Deposits       43,241       -       -       -         342       Unearned Revenues       2,516       331,394       199,538         347       Interprogram Due To       -       -       -       -         310       Total Current Liabilities       79,183       -       349,985       199,538         354       Accrued compensated Absences - Non Current       4,947       -       5,408       -         350       Total Noncurrent Liabilities       49,497       -       5,408       -         350       Total Liabilities       84,130       -       355,393       199,538         300       Total Liabilities       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         511.4       Restricted net position       714,390       -       177,720       -         512.4       Unrestricted net position       1,891,597       -       161,661       -         513       Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity       5,419,788       -       706,892       199,538         70300       Net Tenant Rental Revenue       429,604       -       -       -       -	-	1'
342       Unearned Revenues       2,516       -       331,394       199,538         347       Interprogram Due To       -       -       -       -         310       Total Current Liabilities       79,183       -       349,985       199,538         354       Accrued compensated Absences - Non Current       4,947       -       5,408       -         350       Total Noncurrent Liabilities       4,947       -       5,408       -         300       Total Liabilities       84,130       -       355,393       199,538         508.4       Net investment in capital assets       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         511.4       Restricted net position       714,390       -       177,720       -         512.4       Unrestricted net position       1,891,597       -       161,661       -         513       Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity       5,419,788       351,499       -       -         600       Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity       5,419,788       -       -       -         70300       Net Tenant Rental Revenue       429,604       -       -       -       -	-	43
347       Interprogram Due To       -       -       -       -       -         310       Total Current Liabilities       79,183       -       349,985       199,538         354       Accrued compensated Absences - Non Current       4,947       -       5,408       -         350       Total Noncurrent Liabilities       4,947       -       5,408       -         300       Total Liabilities       84,130       -       355,393       199,538         508.4       Net investment in capital assets       2,729,671       -       12,118       -         511.4       Restricted net position       714,390       -       177,720       -         512.4       Unrestricted net position       1,891,597       161,661       -         513       Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity       5,335,658       351,499       -         600       Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity       5,419,788       706,892       199,538         70300       Net Tenant Rental Revenue       429,604       -       -       -	-	533
354         Accrued compensated Absences - Non Current         4,947         -         5,408         -           350         Total Noncurrent Liabilities         4,947         -         5,408         -           300         Total Liabilities         84,130         -         355,393         199,538           508.4         Net investment in capital assets         2,729,671         -         12,118         -           511.4         Restricted net position         714,390         -         177,720         -           512.4         Unrestricted net position         1,891,597         -         161,661         -           513         Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity         5,335,658         -         351,499         -           600         Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity         5,419,788         -         -           70300         Net Tenant Rental Revenue         429,604         -         -         -	-	
350         Total Noncurrent Liabilities         4,947         5,408         6           300         Total Liabilities         84,130         355,393         199,538         199,538           508.4         Net investment in capital assets         2,729,671         12,118         6           511.4         Restricted net position         714,390         177,720         6           512.4         Unrestricted net position         1,891,597         161,661         6           513         Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity         5,335,658         351,499         6           600         Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity         5,419,788         706,892         199,538           70300         Net Tenant Rental Revenue         429,604         6         6         6	-	628
350         Total Noncurrent Liabilities         4,947         5,408         6           300         Total Liabilities         84,130         355,393         199,538         199,538           508.4         Net investment in capital assets         2,729,671         12,118         6           511.4         Restricted net position         714,390         177,720         6           512.4         Unrestricted net position         1,891,597         161,661         6           513         Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity         5,335,658         351,499         6           600         Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity         5,419,788         706,892         199,538           70300         Net Tenant Rental Revenue         429,604         6         6         6	-	1(
300         Total Liabilities         84,130         355,393         199,538           508.4         Net investment in capital assets         2,729,671         12,118         -           511.4         Restricted net position         714,390         177,720         -           512.4         Unrestricted net position         1,891,597         161,661         -           513         Total Equity         5,335,658         351,499         -           600         Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity         5,419,788         706,892         199,538           70300         Net Tenant Rental Revenue         429,604         -         -         -	-	1(
508.4         Net investment in capital assets         2,729,671         -         12,118         -           511.4         Restricted net position         714,390         -         177,720         -           512.4         Unrestricted net position         1,891,597         -         161,661         -           513         Total Equity         5,335,658         -         351,499         -           600         Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity         5,419,788         -         706,892         199,538           70300         Net Tenant Rental Revenue         429,604         -         -         -	-	639
512.4       Unrestricted net position       1,891,597       -       161,661       -         513       Total Equity       5,335,658       -       351,499       -         600       Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity       5,419,788       -       706,892       199,538         70300       Net Tenant Rental Revenue       429,604       -       -       -		2,74
513         Total Equity         5,335,658         351,499            600         Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity         5,419,788          706,892         199,538           70300         Net Tenant Rental Revenue         429,604	-	892
600       Total Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Equity       5,419,788       -       706,892       199,538         70300       Net Tenant Rental Revenue       429,604       -       -       -	- 2	2,053
70300 Net Tenant Rental Revenue 429,604	- 5	5,687
70300         Net Tenant Rental Revenue         429,604         -         -	- 6	6,320
		429
70400 Tenant Revenue - Other 4,657	-	4

See independent auditor's report

#### FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE

#### For the year ended March 31, 2024

	13 FYED: 03/31/2024						
Line Item		Public and Indian Housing	Public Housing Capital Fund	Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program			
No.	Account Description	14.850	14.872	14.871	Disasters 97.036	Eliminations	Total
70600	HUD PHA Grants	508,285	408,856	3,618,233	-	-	4,535,37
70610	HUD PHA Capital Grants	-	415,530	-	-	-	415,53
71100	Investment Income - Unrestricted	16,911	-	4,489	-	-	21,40
71500	Other revenue	70,219	-	137,249	-	-	207,46
70000	Total Revenue	1,029,676	824,386	3,759,971	-	-	5,614,03
91100	Administrative Salaries	134,900	-	166,672	-	-	301,57
91200	Auditing Fees	22,500	-	22,500	-	-	45,0
91400	Advertising and Marketing	-	-	205	-	-	2
91500	Employee Benefit Contributions - Administrative	48,672	-	20,148	-	-	68,8
91600	Office Expenses	51,924	-	75,780	-	-	127,7
91700	Legal Expense	16,524	-	16,068	-	-	32,5
91800	Travel	1,044	-	584	-	-	1,6
91900	Other	9,794	-	9,475	-	-	19,2
92400		189	-	-	-		1
			-		-		
	Water	34,650	-	2,597	-	-	37,2
	Electricity	18,279	-	8,144	-	-	26,4
93600	Sewer	33,223	-	2,462	-	-	35,6
	Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor	45,267	-	-	-	-	45,2
94200	OMO - Materials and Other	90,447	-	-	-	-	90,4
94300	Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Contract Costs	331,126	-	-	-	-	331,1
94500	Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance	16,333	-	-	-	-	16,3
95200	Protective Services - Other Contract Costs	55,320	-	-	-	-	55,3
95300	Protective Services - Other	633	-	-	-	-	6
96110	Property Insurance	197,571	-	12,299	-	-	209,8
	Liability Insurance	4,107	-	4,108	-		8,2
	Workmen's Compensation	8,940	-	6,744	-		15,6
	All Other Insurance	3,500	-	62	-	-	3,5
	Other General Expenses	197	-	81,753	-	-	81,9
	Compensated Absences	7,452	-	5,449	-	-	12,9
	Bad Debt - Tenant Rents	9,229	-	-	-	-	9,2
	Total Operating Expenses	1,141,821	-	435,050	-	-	1,576,8
	Excess Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses	, ,	024.200				
		(112,145)	824,386	3,324,921	-	-	4,037,1
	Extraordinary Maintenance	53,980	-	-	-		53,9
	Housing Assistance Payments	-	-	3,459,594	-	-	3,459,5
	HAP Portability-in	-	-	130,960	-	-	130,9
	Depreciation Expense	478,259	-	3,673	-	-	481,9
90000	Total Expenses	1,674,060	-	4,029,277	-	-	5,703,3
10010	Operating transfers in	408,856	-	-	-	(408,856)	
	Operating transfers out	-	(408,856)	-	-	408,856	
10100	Total other financing sources (Uses)	408,856	(408,856)	-	-	-	
10000	Excess (deficiency) of total revenue over (under) total expenses	(235,528)	415,530	(269,306)		-	(89,3
11030	Beginning Equity	5,155,656	-	620,805	-	-	5,776,4
11040	Total Prior Period Adjustments, Equity transfer and correction of errors	415,530	(415,530)				
11190	Unit Months Available	1,442	-	7,416	-	-	8,8
11210	Number of Unit Months Leased	1,281	-	5,051	-	-	6,3
	Administrative Fee Equity	-	-	173,779	-	-	173,7
	Housing Assistance Payments Equity	-	-	177,720	-	-	177,7
	Excess Cash	1,711,226		,			1,711,2
	Building Purchases	1,711,220	415,530	-			415,5

See independent auditor's report

#### SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM COSTS AND ADVANCES

#### For the year ended March 31, 2024

PROGRAM	 501-17	 501-18	 501-19	 501-20	 501-21	 501-22	 501-24	 Total
BUDGET	\$ 140,051	\$ 215,805	\$ 225,704	\$ 242,510	\$ 253,483	\$ 310,900	\$ 329,032	\$ 1,717,485
ADVANCES								 
Cash receipts - prior years	\$ -							
Cash receipts - current year	 140,051	 215,805	 191,946	 153,414	 123,170	 -	 -	 824,386
Cumulative as of March 31, 2024	 140,051	 215,805	 191,946	 153,414	 123,170	 -	 -	 824,386
COSTS								
Prior years	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Current year	 140,051	 215,805	 191,946	 153,414	 123,170	 -	 -	 824,386
Cumulative as of March 31, 2024	 140,051	215,805	191,946	153,414	 123,170	 -	-	 824,386
RECEIVABLE DUE FROM HUD	\$ -							
SOFT COSTS	 		 					
Prior years	\$ -							
Current year	 140,051	 215,805	 -	 28,000	 25,000	 -	 -	 408,856
Cumulative as of March 31, 2024	 140,051	 215,805	 -	 28,000	 25,000	 -	 -	 408,856
HARD COSTS								
Prior years	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Current year	 -	 -	 191,946	 125,414	 98,170	 -	 -	 415,530
Cumulative as of March 31, 2024	 -	 -	 191,946	 125,414	 98,170	 -	 -	 415,530
CUMULATIVE HARD AND SOFT COSTS	\$ 140,051	\$ 215,805	\$ 191,946	\$ 153,414	\$ 123,170	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 824,386

NOTE: The Authority did not receive the 2023 Capital Grant award due to failure to meet Obligation End Date on the 2018 Capital Grant award.

See independent auditor's report.

#### SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

#### For the year ended March 31, 2024

Agency Head Name:

Ronald Frazier

Ronald Frazier

Position of the Slidell Housing Authority:

Date Range:

Interim Executive Director

Executive Director

4/1/2023 - 12/20/2023

12/20/2023 - 3/31/2024

Purpose	Amount	A	Amount	Total
Salary (retainer)	\$ 43,516	\$	31,089	\$ 74,605
Benefits-insurance	\$ 4,270	\$	2,823	\$ 7,093
Benefits-retirement	\$ -	\$	-	\$ -
Benefits-deferred comp	\$ -	\$	-	\$ -
Car allowance	\$ -	\$	-	\$ -
Vehicle provided by government	\$ -	\$	-	\$ -
Per diem	\$ -	\$	-	\$ -
Reimbursements	\$ -	\$	-	\$ -
Travel	\$ 739	\$	-	\$ 739
Registration fees	\$ -	\$	-	\$ -
Conference travel	\$ 80	\$	-	\$ 80
Continuing professional education fees	\$ -	\$	-	\$ -
Housing	\$ -	\$	-	\$ -
Unvouchered expenses	\$ -	\$	-	\$ -
Special meals	\$ 100	\$	-	\$ 100

# SINGLE AUDIT INFORMATION

# SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

#### For the year ended March 31, 2024

Federal grantor/pass-through grantor/ program or cluster title	Assistance listing number	ex	Federal penditures
Direct from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban			
Development:			
Housing Voucher Cluster:			
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program	14.871	\$	3,618,233
Public Housing Capital Fund	14.872		824,386
Public and Indian Housing	14.850		508,285
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS	\$	4,950,904	

# NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and local assistance includes federal grant activity of the Housing Authority of the City of Slidell and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

In accordance with HUD regulations, HUD considers the Annual Budget Authority for the Housing Choice Voucher Program, AL No. 14.871, to be considered an expenditure for the purposes of this schedule. Therefore, the amount in this schedule is the total amount received directly from HUD.

## NOTE 2 - INDIRECT COST RATE

The Authority did not elect to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate.

## **NOTE 3 - SUB-RECIPIENTS**

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Authority had no sub-recipients.

## NOTE 4 - NONCASH ASSISTANCE AND OTHER

The Authority did not receive any noncash assistance, federal loans, or federally funded insurance during the year ended March 31, 2024.



#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners Housing Authority of the City of Slidell Slidell, Louisiana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Housing Authority of the City of Slidell (the "Authority"), as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Authority's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 27, 2024.

#### **Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Authority's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

#### 30

#### bermanhopkins.com

MELBOURNE 8035 Spyglass Hill Road Melbourne, FL 32940 321-757-2020 **ORLANDO** 255 South Orange Avenue, #1000 Orlando, FL 32801 407-841-8841 **WINTER PARK** 1415 Gene Street Winter Park, FL 32789 407-412-9299

#### **Report on Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Authority's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

#### **Purpose of This Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

September 27, 2024 Melbourne, Florida Berman Hopkins Wright & LaHam

CPAs and Associates, LLP



#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Commissioners The Housing Authority of the City of Slidell Slidell Louisiana

#### Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

#### **Opinion on Each Major Federal Program**

We have audited Authority's compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB *Compliance Supplement* that could have a direct and material effect on each of Authority's major federal programs for the year ended March 31, 2024. The Housing Authority of the City of Slidell (the "Authority") major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended March 31, 2024.

#### Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. *Code of Federal Regulations* Part 200, *Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards* (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Authority's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

#### 32

#### bermanhopkins.com

MELBOURNE 8035 Spyglass Hill Road Melbourne, FL 32940 321-757-2020 **ORLANDO** 255 South Orange Avenue, #1000 Orlando, FL 32801 407-841-8841 **WINTER PARK** 1415 Gene Street Winter Park, FL 32789 407-412-9299

# Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Authority's federal programs.

## Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Authority's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, *Government Auditing Standards*, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Authority's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, *Government Auditing Standards*, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Authority's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
- Obtain an understanding of Authority's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

#### **Report on Internal Control over Compliance**

A *deficiency in internal control over compliance* exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.

A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency in internal control over compliance* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we available.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

September 27, 2024 Melbourne, Florida

Berman Hopkins Wright & LaHam CPAs and Associates. LLP

#### Housing Authority of the City of Slidell

### SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

#### For the year ended March 31, 2024

#### A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

<u>Financial Statements</u> Type of auditor's report issued: **Unmodified** 

Internal control over financial reporting: Material weakness identified? **No** Significant deficiency identified? **None reported** 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs: Material weakness identified? **No** Significant deficiency identified? **None reported** 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

#### Public Housing Capital Fund - Unmodified Housing Voucher Cluster - Unmodified

There are no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).

The programs tested as major programs are as follows:

Public Housing Capital Fund - AL No. 14.872 Housing Voucher Cluster

The threshold for distinguishing types A and B programs was **\$750,000**.

Did the auditee qualify as a low-risk auditee? No.

#### B. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

#### None

#### C. FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

#### None

# D. PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

None



#### INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

Board of Commissioners Housing Authority of the City of Slidell Slidell, Louisiana and Louisiana Legislative Auditor:

We have performed the procedures listed below, which were agreed to by The Housing Authority of the City of Slidell (the "Authority") and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor ("LLA") on the control and compliance areas identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures *Year 6* ("SAUPs") for the fiscal period April 1, 2023 through March 31, 2024. The Authority's management is responsible for those control and compliance areas identified in the SAUPs.

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of *Government Auditing Standards*. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of this report. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

A description of the detailed SAUPs are listed in Addendum A:

The associated results and conclusions are as follows:

#### Written Policies and Procedures

The Authority has adopted a policy that complies with governmental requirements, but has no debt in the current year. There were no other exceptions noted relating to written policies and procedures.

#### Board or Finance Committee

The Authority held Board meetings monthly. They are not on the governmental accounting model, therefore no budget-to-actual comparisons were required or performed. There were no exceptions noted.

#### **Bank Reconciliations**

The Authority's bank reconciliations were complete and contained the required approvals. The Authority had proper separation of duties. There were no exceptions noted.

bermanhopkins.com

1

MELBOURNE 8035 Spyglass Hill Road Melbourne, FL 32940 321-757-2020 ORLANDO 255 South Orange Avenue, #1000 Orlando, FL 32801 407-841-8841 **WINTER PARK** 1415 Gene Street Winter Park, FL 32789 407-412-9299

#### Collections

The Authority does not accept cash. The Authority has two collection sites and receipts are properly deposited, posted and reconciled. The individuals who collect the payments do not post to the general ledger. The Authority's documentation addresses all controls implemented and executed over collections. There were no exceptions noted.

#### Non-Payroll Disbursements

The Authority's procedures over the disbursement process properly addressed all required testing attributes. There were no exceptions noted.

#### Credit Cards

The Authority's procedures over credit card transactions require proper approvals before any disbursements were processed. All support contained the appropriate approvals and the Authority did not pay interest or late fees. There were no exceptions noted.

#### Travel and Expense Reimbursement

The Authority has a written travel policy that is within GSA rate requirements. The Authority did not have any travel throughout the fiscal year. There were no exceptions noted.

#### Contracts

The Authority's contracts were in accordance with the Authority's procurement policies and legal requirements. All contract amendments were properly allowed, approved and supported. There were no exceptions noted.

#### Payroll and Personnel

The Authority has sufficient controls over the payroll and personnel processes. All payroll checks tested contained proper pay rates, taxes, and documentation of leave. The Authority does not currently have an active retirement plan. There were no exceptions noted.

#### Ethics

The Authority provided support for all ethics requirements. There were no exceptions noted.

#### **Debt Service**

The Authority does not have any debt agreements as of or for the year ended March 31, 2024.

#### Fraud Notice

The Authority did not have any instances of fraud or misappropriation of funds to report.

#### Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity

The Authority has performed and provided recent documentation of backup of critical data and has tested and verified that the data can be restored as needed. We inspected five computers and all of them had anti-virus software installed. There were no exceptions noted.

#### Sexual Harassment

The Authority provided support for all sexual harassment training requirements for all current employees. There were no exceptions noted.

#### Other

The Authority has reported no misappropriation of funds during the audit period and has properly posted all notices as required by R.S. 24:523.1. There were no exceptions noted.

We were engaged by the Authority to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the AICPA. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those control and compliance areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Authority and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties. The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those control and compliance areas identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document.

September 27, 2024 Melbourne, FL

Berman Hopkins Wright & LaHam CPAs and Associates. LLP

ADDENDUM A

# STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

FISCAL YEARS BEGINNING ON OR AFTER JANUARY 1, 2023 LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES



# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Introduction			
What's New?			
Applicable Auditing Standards			
Reporting AUP Findings			
Statewide AUP Exceptions and the Schedule of Audit Findings			
Knowledge of Matters Outside Agreed-Upon Procedures			
Applicability of AUPs – Local Governments and Quasi-Public Entities			
<u>Applicability of AUPs – Not-For-Profit Entities</u>			
<u>Applicability of AUPs – Multi-State Entities</u>			
<u>Applicability of AUPs – Component Units</u>			
<u>AUP Exemption – Single Audit</u>			
<u>AUP Exemption – School Activity or Student Activity Funds</u>			
AUP Exemption - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds			
Other Entities Exempt from the AUPs			
Statewide AUPs Compared with Other Required AUP Types			
Options and Alternatives			
Using the Work of Internal Auditors or Other Practitioners			
Special Consideration for School Boards			
Procedures			
1.) <u>Written Policies and Procedures</u>			
2.) <u>Board or Finance Committee</u>			

3.)	Bank Reconciliations	12
4.)	Collections	13
5.)	Non-Payroll Disbursements	14
6.)	Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards	16
7.)	Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements	17
8.)	Contracts	17
9.)	Payroll and Personnel	18
10.)	Ethics	19
11.)	Debt Service	19
12.)	Fraud Notice	20
13.)	Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity	20
14.)	Prevention of Sexual Harassment	21

# INSTRUCTIONS

# Introduction

The Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) has prescribed statewide agreed-upon procedures (AUPs) below, which are intended to represent a minimum level of additional work to be performed at those local entities (local governments and quasi-public organizations, including not-for-profit organizations) that meet the legal requirement to have an audit under the Audit Law<sup>1</sup> (i.e., public funds totaling \$500,000 or more in revenues and other sources). This update to the AUPs will be effective for those entities that have fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2023 (Version 6).

The AUPs are not intended to address all areas of risk within an entity. Instead, they are designed to address those areas that have resulted in the most frequent incidents of fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. The objective of the statewide AUPs is to correct internal control processes of local entities in order to lessen their risks of fraud, waste, or abuse in the future.

The AUPs are applicable to all fund types (governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary, including custodial funds administered by sheriffs or other tax collectors). But see the <u>Single Audit</u> and <u>School Activity Fund</u> exemption sections following.

As has been in place since 2021, all entities not exempt from performing the AUPs as stated within the <u>Applicability of AUPs</u> section of this document are required to perform all applicable AUP categories.

# What's New?

- Procedure 3 (Bank Reconciliations): Added that the review needs to be completed within 1 month of the date the reconciliation was prepared; and
- Procedure 13 (Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity): Added to observe evidence that employees with access to the agency's information technology assets have received cybersecurity training as required by R.S. 42:1267.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> R.S. 24:511-24:559

Additionally, edits have been made to existing instructions and Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs).

# Applicable Auditing Standards

The AUPs are to be performed in accordance with attestation standards (Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements; SSAEs) established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and *Government Auditing Standards*, and the AUP report must be attached with the audit report that is submitted to the Legislative Auditor's office (i.e., one pdf file submitted to the LLA rather than two). The AUPs are required to be performed by the same firm that performs the annual audit; accordingly, a separate "engagement approval form" for the statewide AUP engagement is **not required**. The LLA is considered to be a specified party to the AUP engagements and acknowledges that the procedures performed are appropriate for our purposes by our acceptance of the standard audit engagement approval forms.

# **Reporting AUP Findings**

*Findings* are the factual results of the procedures performed, including sufficient details of any exceptions found. All exceptions found, other than those related to Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, are to be included in the AUP report with management's responses/corrective actions. To avoid potential conflicts with the attestation standards, we recommend that management prepare a single overall response to the AUP report. If management chooses **not** to respond to the AUP findings at all, the practitioner must include a statement that "management declined to respond to the findings or provide a plan of corrective action." If no exceptions are found when performing a procedure, "no exceptions were found as a result of this procedure" is an acceptable result in the AUP report.

To avoid the possible exposure of entity information technology vulnerabilities, we ask that results of the Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity SAUP testing (Procedure 13) be discussed with management and **not shown within the AUP report**. Instead, we ask that each procedure under the Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity AUP category be followed by the statement, "**We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.**" Note: The practitioner should maintain documentation of Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity AUP testing and subsequent results in the engagement workpapers.

The LLA does not intend to penalize entities for exceptions that do not directly correspond to control risks. Accordingly, if the practitioner found exceptions within an AUP category, based strictly on the wording of the procedure, but the practitioner believes that compensating controls **fully** mitigated the underlying control risk, the entity may report no exceptions. The practitioner should maintain documentation of compensating controls in the engagement workpapers.

# <u>Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Exceptions and the Schedule of Audit</u> <u>Findings</u>

The results of the AUPs do not change the practitioner's separate responsibility to report significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, material noncompliance, etc. as part of the regular <u>audit</u> engagement. However, the practitioner should not include the AUP exceptions or a reference to the exceptions in the audit report's schedule of findings unless an AUP or internal audit exception rises to the level of a significant deficiency or material weakness and is included as a finding for purposes of the audit. Similarly, AUP exceptions should not be copied and pasted as findings in the LLA report submission portal unless they are addressed as findings in the audit report.

# Knowledge of Matters Outside Agreed-Upon Procedures

Under the attestation standards, the practitioner need not perform procedures beyond the procedures agreed to and acknowledged by the engaging party to be appropriate for the intended purpose of the engagement. If, in connection with the application of the procedures and through the completion of the engagement, matters come to the practitioner's attention by other means that significantly contradict the subject matter referred to in the practitioner's report, the practitioner should discuss the matter with the engaging party and take appropriate action, including determining whether the practitioner's report should be revised to disclose the matter. While the reporting of these matters within the AUP report is at the practitioner's discretion, the practitioner still has an obligation to consider the associated risk/noncompliance as part of the <u>audit</u>.

If the practitioner has gained "knowledge of matters outside agreed-upon procedures" related to fraud, theft, or the pledge/loan/donation of public funds (LA Const. Art. 7, Section 14<sup>2</sup>), <u>and the practitioner does not include these matters in either the AUP report or in the audit report</u>, the practitioner <u>MUST</u> contact the LLA to discuss before submitting the reports.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution prohibits the loan, pledge, or donation of funds, credit, property, or things of value (e.g. cash advances or non-business purchases, regardless of whether they were reimbursed).

### Applicability of AUPs – Local Governments and Quasi-Public Entities

These statewide AUPs are applicable to all local governments and quasi-public entities defined in R.S. 24:513(A)(1)(b) paragraphs i through iii and v as follows:

- *i.* An organization, either not-for-profit or for-profit, created by the state of Louisiana or any political subdivision or agency thereof, any special district or authority, or unit of local government to perform a public purpose.
- *ii.* An organization, either not-for-profit or for-profit, that is a component unit of a governmental reporting entity, as defined under generally accepted accounting principles.
- *iii.* An organization, either not-for-profit or for-profit, created to perform a public purpose and having one or more of the following characteristics:
  - *aa.* The governing body is elected by the general public.
  - bb. A majority of the governing body is appointed by or authorized to be appointed by a governmental entity or individual government official as a part of his official duties.
  - cc. The entity is the recipient of the proceeds of an ad valorem tax or general sales tax levied specifically for its operations.
  - *dd.* The entity is able to directly issue debt, the interest on which is exempt from federal taxation.
  - ee. The entity can be dissolved unilaterally by a governmental entity and its net assets assumed without compensation by that governmental entity.
- v. Any organization, either not-for-profit or for-profit, which is subject to the open meetings law and derives a portion of its income from payments received from any public agency or body.

# Applicability of AUPs -Not-for-Profit Entities

These AUPs are applicable **to only the public funds** of not-for-profit entities defined in R.S. 24:513(B)(1)(b)(iv) as follows:

*iv.* Any not-for-profit organization that receives or expends any local or state assistance in any fiscal year. Assistance shall include grants, loans, transfers of property, awards, and direct appropriations of state or local public funds. Assistance shall not include guarantees, membership dues, vendor contracts for goods and services related to administrative support for a local or state assistance program, assistance to private or

parochial schools except as provided in R.S. 17:4022, assistance to private colleges and universities, or benefits to individuals.

In addition, these AUPs are applicable to the not-for-profit entities defined in paragraph iv above only if their revenues and other sources of **public funds** total at least \$500,000. Only those AUP areas applicable to **public funds** administered by the not-for-profit entity are required to be included in the scope of the AUP engagement. The <u>Reporting Requirements for Not-for-Profit Organizations</u> document may be useful in identifying public assistance, calculating revenues and other sources of funds, and determining which type of report not-for-profit entities are required to submit to the LLA.

# Applicability of AUPs -Multi-State Entities

For **multi-state quasi-public and not-for-profit entities**, the AUPs are applicable for only Louisiana funds. For example, if a multi-state quasi-public entity with Louisiana offices has a payroll function that is not funded with Louisiana funds, then the payroll AUP section would not be applicable. However, if the New York office of a multi-state not-for-profit entity disburses Louisiana funds, then the non-payroll disbursements AUP section would be applicable.

# Applicability of AUPs - Component Units

The scope of the AUPs applies to the primary reporting entity and is not required to be extended to discretely presented component units of the entity. However, entities that are discrete component units of a primary government <u>and</u> separately report to the LLA are individually subject to the AUPs. Discrete component units that separately report to the LLA but have portions of their operations performed by the primary government (payroll processing, for example) are exempt from those portions of the AUPs relating to the operations performed by the primary government: instead, AUPs performed at the primary government should address those areas.

# <u> AUP Exemption – Single Audit</u>

If either a governmental, quasi-public entity or not-for-profit entity (collectively known as "local auditee") has met the \$500,000 Audit Law threshold, and all or part of the entity's public funds are federal major program funds (either direct or pass-through) tested under the entity's Single Audit during the fiscal period, the entity may exclude those AUP categories that are covered under federal program testing, regardless of whether the federal program testing includes the same procedures or sample sizes. For example, a not-for-profit entity that has one federal program subject to Single Audit testing may exclude credit cards, travel expenditures, non-

payroll disbursements, contracts, and payroll and personnel if these areas are subject to testing under Allowable Costs and Procurement in the OMB Compliance Supplement; however, the entity would still be subject to other AUP areas that are not addressed in the OMB Compliance Supplement (e.g., board or finance committee, bank reconciliations). However, an entity that has other public funds not subject to testing under the Single Audit must still test those funds under the AUPs. In that situation, we recommend selecting sample sizes for the applicable AUP categories from the overall population of transactions and then removing those sample items that fall within Single Audit testing. Alternatively, the practitioner could apply a prorata ratio to the AUP sample sizes to accomplish the same goal.

# AUP Exemption – School or Student Activity Funds

School or student activity fund accounts may be excluded from testing under the AUPs if they are otherwise addressed in a separately contracted audit or agreed-upon procedures engagement (which does not have to include the same procedures as in the AUPs). In this situation, the audit or agreed-upon procedures report is required to be submitted to the LLA as a separate engagement and is not required to be included in the pdf file with the practitioner's audit/AUP report.

# <u> AUP Exemption – Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds</u> <u>Recipients (CSLFR)</u>

LLA does not require a local auditee to provide for the statewide agreed-upon procedures report for fiscal years in which the local auditee would be required to provide for a review/attestation report, if not for the receipt of CSLFR funds (Assistance Listing Number 21.027) as explained in <u>Audit Risk Alert 46</u>.

# Other Entities Exempt from the AUPs

State entities whose financial information is included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the State of Louisiana are exempt from the statewide AUPs in this document.

Private and parochial schools, as well as university foundations, facility corporations, and booster associations, are specifically excluded by law from having to provide audit reports to the LLA and are exempt from the AUPs. Real estate for-profit limited partnership entities are exempt from the AUPs based on the nature of their operations.

# Statewide AUPs Compared with Other Required AUP Types

Please note that the statewide AUPs included in this document apply only to local governments and quasi-public entities that meet the requirement to have an audit under the Audit Law. The LLA also has 3 other types of agreed-upon procedures engagements that should not be confused with the statewide AUPs, as follows:

- State entity (not "statewide") agreed-upon procedures are required for certain engagements for entities that are included in the state's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. These engagements are contracted directly by the LLA's Financial Audit Services group and do not apply to local governments or quasi-public entities.
- Review/Attest engagements include agreed-upon procedures for local governments and quasi-public entities that differ from the statewide AUPs and apply only to those entities that receive public funds of at least \$200,000 but not more than \$499,999.
- Department of Education Performance Measures AUPs are required for school boards and charter schools.

More than one set of agreed-upon procedures may be required, depending on whether each criterion above has been met. For example, a parish school board with public funds of \$500,000 or greater would be subject to both the statewide AUPs and the Department of Education Performance Measures AUPs.

# **Options and Alternatives**

The practitioner may avoid duplication of existing audit procedures by using the same transactions for both audit and AUP purposes. For example, if the AUPs indicate that 10 random transactions should be selected and the practitioner would otherwise plan to test 25 random transactions as part of the entity's audit, the practitioner may use the same 10 transactions for both the audit and the AUP engagement.

To avoid creating an undue burden on practitioners, the AUPs may be performed for a 12-month "fiscal period" that does not coincide with the entity's fiscal year, as long as the 12-month fiscal period is no more than 3 months prior to the end of the entity's fiscal year. For example, the practitioner may perform AUPs for the fiscal period April 1, 2023 through March 31, 2024 for an entity with a fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. All AUPs will reference "fiscal period" to mean the 12-months covered by the AUPs. If the entity elects to change its "fiscal period," the subsequent year of AUP testing must not leave a gap between fiscal periods. For example, a change from a March 31 fiscal period end to a June 30 fiscal period end would require a 15-month AUP engagement in the year of change.

# Using the Work of Internal Auditors or Other Practitioners

In compliance with SSAE 19, the procedures to be enumerated or referred to in the practitioner's report should be performed by the engagement team or other practitioners and not by internal auditors.

Internal auditors may prepare schedules and accumulate data or provide other information for the practitioner's use in performing the procedures. Also, internal auditors may perform and report separately on procedures that they have carried out. Such procedures may be similar to those that a practitioner may perform under this section.

A practitioner may perform procedures on information documented in the working papers of internal auditors. For example, the practitioner may do the following:

- Repeat all or some of the procedures, or
- Determine whether the internal auditor's documentation indicates procedures performed and whether the findings documented are presented in a report by the internal auditors.

It is inappropriate for the practitioner to do the following:

- Merely read the internal auditors' report solely to describe or repeat their findings;
- Take responsibility for all or a portion of any procedures performed by internal auditors by reporting those findings as the practitioner's own; or
- Report in any manner that implies shared responsibility for the procedures with the internal auditors.

The practitioner must include a copy (or copies if the internal auditor has multiple reports that address AUP procedures) of the internal auditor's procedures performed and findings observed when submitting the audit report and AUP report to the LLA. In this situation, all three reports should be submitted to the LLA as one pdf file, and all three reports will be issued by the LLA as a public document. If the practitioner believes the AUPs collectively cannot be performed based on the nature of the entity's operations, please contact the LLA to request an exemption to the AUPs. If a specific procedure cannot be performed based on the nature of the entity's operations, an equivalent procedure may be substituted (e.g., alternate sampling population, alternate method of compiling documentation) at the practitioner's discretion. The substitute procedure is required to be included in the AUP report in place of the

original procedure, and this change in procedures may require the practitioner to update his or her client engagement agreement accordingly.

# Special Consideration for School Boards

For school boards only, the practitioner should consider the deposit site and collection location to be the same if there is a central person (secretary or bookkeeper) through which collections are deposited. The practitioner is required to test documentation at the secretary/bookkeeper level only and is not required to test for completeness of revenues relative to classroom collections by teachers.<sup>3</sup>

 $<sup>^{3}</sup>$  This exclusion would also apply to procedure #4D(i) below.

# PROCEDURES

Report all findings to the following procedures, either after each procedure or after all procedures, within each of the fourteen AUP categories. "Random" selections may be made using Microsoft Excel's random number generator or an alternate method selected by the practitioner that results in an equivalent sample (e.g., those methods allowed under the AICPA Audit Guide - *Audit Sampling*).

# 1) Written Policies and Procedures

- A. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations:<sup>4</sup>
  - i. **Budgeting**, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget.
  - ii. **Purchasing**, including (1) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are added to the vendor list, (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders, (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law, and (5) documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes.
  - iii. **Disbursements**, including processing, reviewing, and approving.
  - iv. **Receipts/Collections**, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation).
  - v. **Payroll/Personnel**, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for employee rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules.
  - vi. *Contracting*, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts,
     (2) standard terms and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> For governmental organizations, the practitioner may eliminate those categories and subcategories not applicable to the organization's operations. For quasi-public organizations, including nonprofits, the practitioner may eliminate those categories and subcategories not applicable to public funds administered by the quasi-public.

- vii. **Travel and Expense Reimbursement**, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers.
- viii. **Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards, if applicable)**, including (1) how cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases).
- ix. **Ethics**<sup>5</sup>, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy.
- x. **Debt Service**, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements.
- xi. Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event.
- xii. **Prevention of Sexual Harassment**, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting.

# 2) Board or Finance Committee<sup>6</sup>

- A. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and
  - i. Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> The Louisiana Code of Governmental Ethics (Ethics Code) is generally not applicable to nonprofit entities but may be applicable in certain situations, such as councils on aging. If the Ethics Code is applicable to a nonprofit, the nonprofit should have written policies and procedures relating to ethics. <sup>6</sup> These procedures are not applicable to entities managed by a single elected official, such as a sheriff or assessor.

- ii. For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, quarterly budget-to-actual comparisons, at a minimum, on all proprietary funds<sup>7</sup>, and semi-annual budget-to-actual comparisons, at a minimum, on all special revenue funds. *Alternatively, for those entities reporting on the not-for-profit accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or included financial activity relating to public funds<sup>8</sup> if those public funds comprised more than 10% of the entity's collections during the fiscal period.*
- iii. For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the general fund.
- iv. Observe whether the board/finance committee received written updates of the progress of resolving audit finding(s), according to management's corrective action plan at each meeting until the findings are considered fully resolved.<sup>9</sup>

# 3) Bank Reconciliations

- A. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts<sup>10</sup> (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that:
  - i. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged);
  - ii. Bank reconciliations include written evidence that a member of management or a board member who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation within 1

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup>Proprietary fund types are defined under GASB standards and include enterprise and internal service funds. The related procedure addresses these funds as a way to verify that boards are provided with financial information necessary to make informed decisions about entity operations, including proprietary operations that are not required to be budgeted under the Local Government Budget Act. <sup>8</sup> R.S. 24:513 (A)(1)(b)(iv) defines public funds.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> No exception is necessary if management's opinion is that the cost of taking corrective action for findings related to improper segregation of duties or inadequate design of controls over the preparation of the financial statements being audited exceeds the benefits of correcting those findings. <sup>10</sup> Accounts selected may exclude savings and investment accounts that are not part of the entity's daily business operations.

month of the date the reconciliation was prepared (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); and

iii. Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable.

# 4) Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers)<sup>11</sup>

- A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites<sup>12</sup> for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5).
- B. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations<sup>13</sup> and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (e.g., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if there are no written policies or procedures, then inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that
  - i. Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers;
  - ii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for preparing/making bank deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation (e.g., prenumbered receipts) to the deposit;
  - iii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting collection entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit; and
  - iv. The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or custodial fund additions, is (are) not also responsible for collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the reconciliation.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> The Collections category is not required to be performed if the entity has a third-party contractor performing all collection functions (e.g., receiving collections, preparing deposits, and making deposits).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> A deposit site is a physical location where a deposit is prepared and reconciled.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> A collection location is a physical location where cash is collected. An entity may have one or more collection locations whose collections are brought to a deposit site for deposit. For example, in a school district a collection location may be a classroom and a deposit site may be the school office. For school boards only, the practitioner should consider the deposit site and collection location to be the same if there is a central person (secretary or bookkeeper) through which collections are deposited.

- C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees who have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy for theft was in force during the fiscal period.
- D. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank Reconciliations procedure #3A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). *Alternatively, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc.* Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and
  - i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered.<sup>14</sup>
  - ii. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection documentation to the deposit slip.
  - iii. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement.
  - iv. Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt<sup>15</sup> at the collection location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less than \$100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer).
  - v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger.

# 5) Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty cash purchases)

- A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5).
- B. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, then inquire of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that
  - i. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and placing an order or making the purchase;
  - ii. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors;

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> The practitioner is not required to test for completeness of revenues relative to classroom collections by teachers.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> As required by Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1212.

- iii. The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files;
- iv. Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments; and
- v. Only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement (release) of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds transfer (EFT), wire transfer, or some other electronic means.

[Note: Findings related to controls that constrain the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality) should not be reported.]

- C. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain the entity's nonpayroll disbursement transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and
  - i. Observe whether the disbursement, whether by paper or electronic means, matched the related original itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates that deliverables included on the invoice were received by the entity, and
  - ii. Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under procedure #5B above, as applicable.
- D. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations procedure #3A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic disbursements if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by only those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's policy, and (b) approved by the required number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: If no electronic payments were made from the main operating account during the month selected the practitioner should select an alternative month and/or account for testing that does include electronic disbursements.

# 6) Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards (Cards)

A. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and purchase cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card

numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the cards<sup>16</sup>. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete.

- B. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement). Obtain supporting documentation, and
  - i. Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically approved) by someone other than the authorized card holder (those instances requiring such approval that may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials, such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality, should not be reported); and
  - ii. Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements.
- C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #7B above, <u>excluding fuel cards</u>, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (e.g., each card should have 10 transactions subject to inspection)<sup>17</sup>. For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and observe whether management had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that is subject to increased scrutiny.

# 7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements<sup>18</sup> (excluding card transactions)

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the fiscal period and management's representation

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> Including cards used by school staff for either school operations or school activity fund operations. <sup>17</sup> For example, if 3 of the 5 cards selected were fuel cards, transactions would only be selected for each of the 2 credit cards. Conceivably, if all 5 cards randomly selected under procedure #7B were fuel cards, procedure #7C would not be applicable.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>18</sup> Non-travel reimbursements are not required to be inspected under this category.

that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements and obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected

- i. If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration (www.gsa.gov);
- ii. If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased;
- iii. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and Procedures procedure #1A(vii); and
- iv. Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the person receiving reimbursement.

# 8) Contracts

- A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. *Alternatively, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list.* Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, <u>excluding the practitioner's contract</u>, and
  - Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law<sup>19</sup> (e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law;
  - Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter);
  - iii. If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract terms provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the contract terms (e.g., if

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>19</sup> If the entity has adopted the state Procurement Code, replace "Louisiana Public Bid Law" (R.S. 38:2211 *et seq*) with "Louisiana Procurement Code."

approval is required for any amendment, the documented approval); and

iv. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract.

# 9) Payroll and Personnel

- A. Obtain a listing of employees and officials<sup>20</sup> employed during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files.
- B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected under procedure #9A above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and
  - i. Observe that all selected employees or officials<sup>21</sup> documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory);
  - ii. Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or officials;
  - iii. Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's cumulative leave records; and
  - iv. Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized salary/pay rate found within the personnel file.
- C. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or officials and obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to the employee's or official's cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee's or official's authorized pay rates in the employee's or official's personnel files, and agree the termination payment to entity policy.
- D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>20</sup> "Officials" would include those elected, as well as board members who are appointed.
<sup>21</sup> Generally, officials are not eligible to earn leave and do not document their attendance and leave.

However, if the official is earning leave according to a policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her daily attendance and leave.

#### **10)** *Ethics*<sup>22</sup>

- A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A obtain ethics documentation from management, and
  - i. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employee/official completed one hour of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:1170; and
  - ii. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each employee and official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period, as applicable.
- B. Inquire and/or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R.S. 42:1170.

#### **11)** Debt Service<sup>23</sup>

- A. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instruments on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained for each debt instrument issued as required by Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution.
- B. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants).

# **12)** Fraud Notice<sup>24</sup>

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is complete. Select

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>22</sup> The Louisiana Code of Governmental Ethics (Ethics Code) is generally not applicable to nonprofit entities but may be applicable in certain situations, such as councils on aging. If the Ethics Code is applicable to a nonprofit, the procedures should be performed.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>23</sup> This AUP category is generally not applicable to nonprofit entities. However, if applicable, the procedures should be performed.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>24</sup> Observation may be limited to those premises that are visited during the performance of other procedures under the AUPs. The notice is available for download at <u>www.lla.la.gov/hotline</u>

all misappropriations on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled as required by R.S. 24:523.

B. Observe that the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds.

# 13) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity

# A. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report "We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management."

- i. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical data (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for backing up critical data) and observe evidence that such backup (a) occurred within the past week, (b) was not stored on the government's local server or network, and (c) was encrypted.
- ii. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has tested/verified that its backups can be restored (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months.
- iii. Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are currently supported by the vendor.
- B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using the list of terminated employees obtained in Payroll and Personnel procedure #9C. Observe evidence that the selected terminated employees have been removed or disabled from the network.
- C. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, obtain cybersecurity training documentation from management, and observe that the documentation demonstrates that the following employees/officials with access to the agency's information

technology assets have completed cybersecurity training as required by R.S. 42:1267<sup>25</sup>. The requirements are as follows:

- Hired before June 9, 2020 completed the training; and
- Hired on or after June 9, 2020 completed the training within 30 days of initial service or employment.

# 14) **Prevention of Sexual Harassment**<sup>26</sup>

- A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343.
- B. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website).
- C. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the report was dated on or before February 1, and observe that the report includes the applicable requirements of R.S. 42:344:
  - i. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training requirements;
  - ii. Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency;
  - iii. Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred;
  - iv. Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or corrective action; and
  - v. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>25</sup> While it appears to be a good practice for charter schools to ensure its employees are trained to keep their information technology assets safe from cyberattack, charter schools do not appear required to comply with 42:1267. An individual charter school, though, through specific provisions of its charter, may mandate that all employees/officials receive cybersecurity training.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>26</sup> While it appears to be a good practice for charter schools to ensure it has policies and training for sexual harassment, charter schools do not appear required to comply with the Prevention of Sexual Harassment Law (R.S. 42:341 et seq). An individual charter school, through the specific provisions of its charter, may mandate sexual harassment training.